FY 2018

STATE OF ILLINOIS

ANNUAL TAX INCREMENT FINANCE
REPORT COMPTROLLER
SUSANA A, MENDOZA

Name of Municipality:  Village of Huntley Reporting Fiscal Year: 2018
County: McHenry Fiscal Year End: 12/31/2018
Unit Code: 063-050-32

TIF Administrator Contact Information |
First Name: Cathy Last Name: Haley
Address: 10987 Main Street Title: Director of Finance
Telephone: 847-515-5200 City: Huntley Zip: 60142
E-mail-

required chaley@huntley.il.us

| attest to the best of my knowledge, that this FY 2018 report of the redevelopment project area(s)

in the City/Village of:

is complete and accurate pursuant to Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3 et. seq.] and or

Industrial Jobs Recovery Law [65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-10 et. seq.].

Written signature of TIF Administrator

Date

Section 1 (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (1.5) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (1.5)*)

FILL OUT ONE FOR EACH TIF DISTICT

Name of Redevelopment Project Area

Date Designated

Date Terminated

VILLAGE OF HUNTLEY DOWNTOWN TIF DISTRICT

1/11/2013

*All statutory citations refer to one of two sections of the Illinois Municipal Code: The Tax Increment Allocation
Redevelopment Act [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3 et. seq.] or the Industrial Jobs Recovery Law [65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-10 et. seq.]




SECTION 2 [Sections 2 through 5 must be completed for each redevelopment project area listed in Section 1.]
FY 2018
Name of Redevelopment Project Area (below):

VILLAGE OF HUNTLEY DOWNTOWN TIF

Primary Use of Redevelopment Project Area*: COMMERCIAL
* Types include: Central Business District, Retail, Other Commercial, Industrial, Residential, and Combination/Mixed.

If "Combination/Mixed" List Component Types:

Under which section of the lllinois Municipal Code was Redevelopment Project Area designated? (check one):
Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act
Industrial Jobs Recovery Law

Please utilize the information below to properly label the Attachments.

>

No Yes

Were there any amendments to the redevelopment plan, the redevelopment project area, or the State Sales Tax Boundary? [65
ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (1) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (1)]

If yes, please enclose the amendment (labeled Attachment A).

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of the municipality that the municipality has complied with all of the requirements of the
Act during the preceding fiscal year. {65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (3) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (3)]

Please enclose the CEO Certification (labeled Attachment B).

Opinion of legal counsel that municipality is in compliance with the Act. [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (4) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (4)]
Please enclose the Legal Counsel Opinion (labeled Attachment C).

Statement setting forth all activities undertaken in furtherance of the objectives of the redevelopment plan, including any project
implemented and a description of the redevelopment activities. [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7) (A and B) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (7) (A X
and B)]

If yes, please enclose the Activities Statement (labled Attachment D).

Were any agreements entered into by the municipality with regard to the disposition or redevelopment of any property within the
redevelopment project area or the area within the State Sales Tax Boundary? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7) (C) and 5/11-74.6-22
(@ (7) (O] X
If yes, please enclose the Agreement(s) (labeled Attachment E).

Is there additional information on the use of all funds received under this Division and steps taken by the municipality to achieve
the objectives of the redevelopment plan? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7) (D) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (7) (D)] X
If yes, please enclose the Additional Information (labeled Attachment F).

Did the municipality's TIF advisors or consultants enter into contracts with entities or persons that have received or are receiving
payments financed by tax increment revenues produced by the same TIF? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7) (E) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d)
(7) (BN

If yes, please enclose the contract(s) or description of the contract(s) (labeled Attachment G).

Were there any reports or meeting minutes submitted to the municipality by the joint review board? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7) (F)
and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (7) (F)] X
If yes, please enclose the Joint Review Board Report (labeled Attachment H).

Were any obligations issued by the municipality? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (8) (A) and

5/11-74.6-22 (d) (8) (A)]

If yes, please enclose any Official Statement (labeled Attachment ). If Attachment | is answered yes, then the Analysis
must be attached and (labeled Attachment J).

An analysis prepared by a financial advisor or underwriter setting forth the nature and term of obligation and projected debt service
including required reserves and debt coverage. [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (8) (B) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (8) (B)] X
If attachment | is yes, then Analysis MUST be attached and (labeled Attachment J).

Has a cumulative of $100,000 of TIF revenue been deposited into the special tax allocation fund? 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (2) and
5/11-74.6-22 (d) (2)

If yes, please enclose Audited financial statements of the special tax allocation fund

(labeled Attachment K).

Cumulatively, have deposits of incremental taxes revenue equal to or greater than $100,000 been made into the special tax

allocation fund? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (9) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (9)] X

If yes, the audit report shall contain a letter from the independent certified public accountant indicating compliance or
noncompliance with the requirements of subsection (q) of Section 11-74.4-3 (labeled Attachment L).

A list of all intergovernmental agreements in effect to which the municipality is a part, and an accounting of any money transferred
or received by the municipality during that fiscal year pursuant to those intergovernmental agreements. [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d)

(10]

If yes, please enclose the list only, not actual agreements (labeled Attachment M).




SECTION 3.1 - (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d)(5)(a)(b)(d)) and (65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (5)(a)(b)(d))
Provide an analysis of the special tax allocation fund.

FY 2018

VILLAGE OF HUNTLEY DOWNTOWN TIF
TIF NAME:

Special Tax Allocation Fund Balance at Beginning of Reporting Period B (989,567)]

Revenue/Cash C;'"t'ull::::e
s Receipts for ota
SOURCE of Revenue/Cash Receipts: Current Reporting Reve.nue/Cas.h
Year. Receipts for life

) of TIF % of Total
Property Tax Increment 3 95997 | § 226,102 6%
State Sales Tax Increment ’ 0%
Local Sales Tax Increment 0%
State Utility Tax Increment 0%
Local Utility Tax Increment 0%
Interest $ 2,601 0%
Land/Building Sale Proceeds 0%
Bond Proceeds 0%
Transfers from Municipal Sources $ 414972 [ $ 3,269,454 88%
Private Sources 3 5,334 0%
Other (identify source ; if multiple other sources, attach
schedule) $ 86,780 [ $ 219,670 6%
All Amount Deposited in Special Tax Allocation Fund | $ 597,749 I
Cumulative Total Revenues/Cash Receipts [$ 3,723,161 100% |
Total Expenditures/Cash Disbursements (Carried forward from $ 819,286
Section 3.2)
Transfers to Municipal Sources
Distribution of Surplus
Total Expenditures/Disbursements [ $ 819,286 |
Net/Income/Cash Receipts Over/(Under) Cash Disbursements [$ (221,537)|
FUND BALANCE, END OF REPORTING PERIOD* [$  (1,211,104)]

* If there is a positive fund balance at the end of the reporting period, you must complete Section 3.3



SECTION 3.2 A- (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (5) (c) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (5)(c))
FY 2018

TIF NAME: VILLAGE OF HUNTLEY DOWNTOWN TIF

ITEMIZED LIST OF ALL EXPENDITURES FROM THE SPECIAL TAX ALLOCATION FUND
(by category of permissible redevelopment project costs )

PAGE 1

Category of Permissible Redevelopment Cost [65 ILCS 6/11-74.4-3 (q) and 65 ILCS 56/11-74.6-10 (0)]

1. Cost of studies, surveys, development of plans, and specifications. Implementation and administration
of the redevelopment plan, staff and professional service cost.

Dewberry Architects Catty Facility Assessment
C.B.Burke - Site Studies

Amounts Reporting Fiscal Year

10,139
10,140

$ 20,278
2. Annual administrative cost.

3. Cost of marketing sites.

4. Property assembly cost and site preparation costs.

5. Costs of renovation, rehabilitation, reconstruction, relocation, repair or remodeling of existing public or
private building, leasehold improvements, and fixtures within a redevelopment project area.
Alliance Contractors: First Street Parking Lot Improvements

William A. Ruth Landscaping: Landscaping and professional Services Rt 47 & Main
Core & Main: Infrastructure replacement Rt. 47 & Main project

BBQ King: Brick Piers for First Street Parking Lot Improvements

304,246

6. Costs of the constructuion of public works or improvements.




SECTION 3.2 A- (65 ILCS 6/11-74.4-5 (d) (5) (c) and 65 IL.CS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (5)(c))
FY 2018

TIF NAME: VILLAGE OF HUNTLEY DOWNTOWN TIF

ITEMIZED LIST OF ALL EXPENDITURES FROM THE SPECIAL TAX ALLOCATION FUND
{by category of permissible redevelopment project costs )

SECTION 3.2 A

PAGE 2

7. Costs of eliminating or removing contaminants and other impediments.

8. Cost of job training and retraining projects.

9. Financing costs.
DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL 237,441
DEBT SERVICE INTEREST 85,717

10. Capital costs.

BBQ King: Development Agreement

Material for Rt 47 & Main Street Improvement Project

Trench & Install Power at Rt 47 & Main

11. Cost of reimbursing school! districts for their increased costs caused by TIF assisted housing projects.

12. Cost of reimbursing library districts for their increased costs caused by TIF assisted housing projects.




SECTION 3.2 A- (65 ILCS 6/11-74.4-5 (d) (5) (c) and 65 ILCS 6/11-74.6-22 (d) (5)(c))
FY 2018

TIF NAME: VILLAGE OF HUNTLEY DOWNTOWN TIF

ITEMIZED LIST OF ALL EXPENDITURES FROM THE SPECIAL TAX ALLOCATION FUND
{by category of permissible redevelopment project costs )

SECTION3.2A
PAGE 3

13. Relocation costs.

14. Payments in lieu of taxes.

15. Costs of job training, retraining, advanced vocational or career education.

16. Interest cost incurred by redeveloper or other nongovernmental persons in connection with a
redevelopment project.

17. Cost of day care services.

18. Other.

COMED Utilities: Catty Building
New Direcional Signage in the Downtown TIF

[TOTAL ITEMIZED EXPENDITURES [s 819,286 |




SECTION 3.3 - (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (5d) 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (5d)
Breakdown of the Balance in the Special Tax Allocation Fund At the End of the Reporting Period by source

FY 2018 )
TIF NAME: VILLAGE OF HUNTLEY DOWNTOWN TIF
FUND BALANCE BY SOURCE B (1.211,104)]
Amount of Original :

Issuance Amount Designated
1. Description of Debt Obligations
American Community Bank Debt Certificate $ 4,000,000 | $ 237,441
Total Amount Designated for Obligations $ 4,000,000 | $ 237,441

2. Description of Project Costs to be Paid

Total Amount Designated for Project Costs | $ - |

TOTAL AMOUNT DESIGNATED [$ 237,441 |

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) B (1,448,545)|




SECTION 4 [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (6) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (6)]
FY 2018

TIF NAME: , VILLAGE OF HUNTLEY DOWNTOWN TIF
Provide a description of all property purchased by the municipality during the reporting fiscal year within the

redevelopment project area.

Check here if no property was acquired by the Municipality within the
Redevelopment Project Area.

Property Acquired by the Municipality Within the Redevelopment Project Area.

Property (1):
Street address:

Approximate size or description of property:

Purchase price:

Seller of property:

Property (2):

Street address:

Approximate size or description of property:

Purchase price:

Seller of property:

Property (3):

Street address:

Approximate size or description of property:
Purchase price:

Seller of property:

Property (4):
Street address:

Approximate size or description of property:

Purchase price:
Seller of property:




SECTION 5 - 20 ILCS 620/4.7 (7)(F)
PAGE 1
FY 2018

TIF Name: VILLAGE OF HUNTLEY DOWNTOWN TIF

Page 1 is to be included with TIF report. Pages 2 and 3 are to be included ONLY if projects are listed.
Select ONE of the following by indicating an 'X":

1. NO projects were undertaken by the Municipality Within the Redevelopment Project Area.

2. The Municipality DID undertake projects within the Redevelopment Project Area. (If selecting this option,
complete 2a.)

2a. The number of projects undertaken by the municipality within the Redevelopment Project Area: 5

LIST the projects undertaken by the Municipality Within the Redevelopment Project Area:

Estimated Investment

for Subsequent Fiscal | Total Estimated to
TOTAL: 11/1/99 to Date Year Complete Project
Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions) $ 1993442 | $ -1$ -
Public Investment Undertaken $ 8512944 | $ -1$ -
Ratio of Private/Public Investment 11/47 0

*PROJECT NAME TO BE LISTED AFTER PROJECT NUMBER
Project 1*: Billitteri Enterprises Development

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions) $ 640,000
Public Investment Undertaken
Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 0

Project 2*: Streetscape Revitalization °

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions) $ 248,442
Public Investment Undertaken $ 8,212,105
Ratio of Private/Public Investment 1/33 0

Project 3*: Passenger Rail

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken $ 105,839

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 0

Project 4*; Veteran's Memorial

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions) $ 105,000
Public Investment Undertaken $ 45,000
Ratio of Private/Public Investment 2 1/3 0

Project 5*: BBQ King

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions) $ 1,000,000

Public Investment Undertaken $ 150,000

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 6 2/3 0
Project 6*:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment 0 0




Optional: Information in the following sections is not required by law, but would be helpful in evaluating the
performance of TIF in lllinois. *even though optional MUST be included as part of the complete TIF report

SECTION 6
FY 2018

TIF NAME: VILLAGE OF HUNTLEY DOWNTOWN TIF

Provide the base EAV (at the time of designation) and the EAV for the year reported for the redevelopment project area
Year redevelopment

project area was Reporting Fiscal Year
designated Base EAV EAV
2013] $ 13,061,908 | $ 14,598,999 |

List all overlapping tax districts in the redevelopment project area.
If overlapping taxing district received a surplus, list the surplus.

Check if the overlapping taxing districts did not receive a surplus.

Surplus Distributed from redevelopment
Overlapping Taxing District project area to overlapping districts
$ -
$ _
$ -
$ -
$ _
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ R
$ R
$ -
$ -
$ -
SECTION 7
Provide information about job creation and retention:
Description and Type
Number of Jobs Number of Jobs (Temporary or
Retained Created Permanent) of Jobs Total Salaries Paid
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ _
$ -
$ B
$ -
SECTION 8

Provide a general description of the redevelopment project area using only major boundaries:

Optional Documents Enclosed
Legal description of redevelopment project area Enclosed
Map of District Enclosed




VILLAGE PRESIDENT
Charles H. Sass

: _ BOARD OF TRUSTEES

7 : i Ronda Goldman
Timothy Hoeft

HUNTLW Niko Kanakaris

Harry Leopold

ILLINOIS John Piwko

JR Westberg

VILLAGE OF
HUNTLEY

VILLAGE MANAGER
David J. Johnson

June 19, 2019

Office of the Comptroller, Susana A. Mendoza
James R. Thompson Center
Local Government Division

100 W. Randolph Street, Suite 15-500

Chicago, I1 60601

Re: Downtown TIF District

Dear Comptroller Mendoza,

Please accept this letter as certification that the Village of Huntley is in compliance with the Tax Increment
Allocation Redevelopment Act pursuant to Section 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3 and Section 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-
10.

Sincerely,

Charles H.
Village President

Attachment B
Unit Code: 063/05-32
Downtown TIF

10987 Main Street * Huntley, lllinois 60142 + 847-515-5200
www. huntley.il.us




COWLIN, NAUGHTON & CURRAN

AN ILLINOIS PARTNERSHIP

ATTORNEYS AT LAW
COWLIN & CURRAN PC 20 GRANT STREET RICHARD P. NAUGHTON
PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION P.O. BOX 188 PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION
JOHN L. COWLIN CRYSTAL LAXKE, ILLINOIS 60039-0188
RICHARD J. CURRAN., JR.
(815) 459-5300 ¢ (847) 669-3000
J. KEVIN HANZEL FACSIMILE (815) 459-5305

June 19, 2019

Sent via Email

Ms. Cathy Haley
Director of Finance
Village of Huntley
10987 Main Street
Huntley, Illinois 60142

Re:  Downtown TIF District
Dear Ms. Haley:
You have asked my legal opinion pertaining to the above matter. Specifically, you have asked for
my opinion as to whether or not the Village of Huntley is in compliance with the Tax Increment
Allocation Development Act for a period ending December 31, 2018. I have reviewed this matter
and am of the opinion that the Village is, in fact, in compliance with the Act. This opinion is being
offered pursuant to section 11-74.4/(d)(4) and section 11-74.6-22(d)(4) of the Act.
If you need further clarification of my opinion, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Very truly yours,

hn L. éowlin

JLC:dl

Attachment C
Unit Code: 063/05-32
Downtown TIF



VILLAGE OF HUNTLEY

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT/ DOWNTOWN

ANNUAL TIF REPORT

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018

Statement of Activities

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, the following activities took place in the Village of

Huntley Tax Increment Financing District / Downtown.

Downtown
Address: Amount
First Street Parking Lot Construction $ 304,246

Downtown:
Address: Amount
Corner of route 47 & Main Street Landscaping $ 53,845

Other Projects: As described in the main report.

Attachment D
Unit Code: 063/05-32
Downtown TIF



10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

TIF JOINT REVIEW BOARD MEETING

DOWNTOWN TIF DISTRICT (McHenry County) DRAFT
June 26, 2018
MINUTES Attachment H
Unit Code: 063/05-32
1. CALL TO ORDER (Village) Downtown TIF

Huntley Village President Charles Sass called to order the Joint Review Board Meeting for the
Downtown Tax Increment Finance (TIF) District on June 28, 2018 at 4:01 p.m. in the Municipal Complex
Village Board Room at 10987 Main Street, Huntley, Illinois 60142. The room is handicap accessible.

2. ATTENDANCE

JOINT REVIEW .

BOARD MEMBERS: Thom Palmer, Executive Director, Huntley Park District
Frank Novak, Huntley Area Public Library and
Chairperson Charles Sass, Huntley Village Board President

MEMBERS ABSENT: Representatives from Huntley School District #158, McHenry County,
Huntley Fire Protection District, McHenry County College #528, Grafton
Township, and McHenry County Conservation District

ALSO PRESENT: Village Manager David Johnson, Assistant Village Manager Lisa Armour,
Director of Finance Cathy Haley, Director of Development Services
Charles Nordman, and Planner James Williams

3.  Public Comment: None

4.  Approval of July 18, 2017 Minutes — South TIF

A MOTION was made to approve the July 18, 2017 — South TIF Meeting Minutes as written.

MOVED: Board Member Palmer
SECONDED: Board Member Novak

AYES: Chairperson Sass

NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: Board Members Palmer and Novak
MOTION CARRIED 1:0:2

5. Approval of July 18, 2017 Minutes — Downtown TIF

A MOTION was made to approve the July 18, 2017 — Downtown TIF Meeting Minutes as written.

MOVED: Board Member Palmer
SECONDED: Board Member Novak
AYES: Chairperson Sass and Board Member Novak

Joint Review Board — Downtown TIF District - Meeting Minutes ~ June 26, 2018 =~ 1



10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Attachment H

NAYS: None Unit Code: 063/05-32
ABSTAIN: Board Member Palmer Downtown TIF
MOTION CARRIED 2:0:1

6. 2017 Audit and Annual TIF Report

Director Haley provided an overview of the Downtown Tax Increment Financing District Report, dated
June 4, 2018, prepared by Sikich Certified Public Accountants and Advisors.

There were no questions or comments.

7. 2018 Budget Summary/Project Review

Director Haley provided an overview of the 2018 Budget Summary/Project Review which included:
construction of downtown parking areas; Route 47 streetscape design; signage within the downtown area;
development of the BBQ King restaurant and multi-tenant site; and maintenance and securement of the
(Catty) property at 11117 South Church Street.

Village Manager Johnson noted that in addition to the Request for Proposals issued for the Catty
Property, resulting in two (2) interested parties, as well as interested from a third group, the Village
continues to pursue viable development options for the building and surrounding site.

8. Questions / Comments

There were no questions or comments.

9. Adjournment

At 4:12 p.m., a MOTION was made to adjourn the June 26, 2018 Joint Review Board meeting.

MOVED: Board Member Novak

SECONDED: Board Member Palmer

AYES: Board Members Novak, Palmer and Chairperson Sass
NAYS: None

ABSTAIN: None

MOTION CARRIED 3:0:0

Respectfully submitted,
Planner
Village of Huntley
Subject to approval at the next Board meeting.

Joint Review Board — Downtown TIF District - Meeting Minutes ~ June 26, 2018 =~ 2



CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & ADVISORS
I KI H ® Members of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

1415 West Diehl Road, Suite 400
Naperville, IL 60563

630.566.8400

SIKICH.COM

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

The Honorable President
Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of Huntley, Illinois

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of
Huntley, Illinois (the Village), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, and the related
notes to financial statements, which collectively comprise the Village’s basic financial statements
and have issued our report thereon dated May 31, 2019 which expressed an unmodified opinion
on those statements.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements
as a whole. The supplementary information (schedule of revenues, expenditures and changes in
fund balance and schedule of fund balance by source) for the Downtown Tax Increment
Financing (TIF) District Fund is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a
required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements.

The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

Sctict LLP

Naperville, Illinois
May 31, 2019

Attachment K
Unit Code 063/05-032
Downtown TIF

ACCOUNTING TECHNOLOGY ADVISORY

_ -2-



VILLAGE OF HUNTLEY, ILLINOIS
DOWNTOWN TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Downtown
TIF
Fund
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 95,997
Video gaming taxes 86,780
Intergovernmental 291,160
Total revenues 473,937
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 377,349
Debt service
Principal 237,441
Interest and fiscal charges 85,717
Current
Economic development 118,778
Total expenditures 819,285
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES (345,348)
OVER EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Intergovernmental 123,812
Total other financing sources (uses) 123,812
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (221,536)
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), JANUARY 1 (989,567)
FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT), DECEMBER 31 $ (1,211,103)

Attachment K
Unit Code 063/05-032
Downtown TIF

(See independent auditor's report on supplementary information.)



VILLAGE OF HUNTLEY, ILLINOIS
DOWNTOWN TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT FUND
SCHEDULE OF FUND BALANCE BY SOURCE

For the Year Ended December 31, 2018

Downtown
TIF
Fund
BEGINNING BALANCE(DEFICIT), JANUARY 1, 2018 $  (989,567)
DEPOSITS
Property taxes 95,997
Video gaming taxes 86,780
Intergovernmental 291,160
Transfers in 123,812
Total deposits 597,749
Balance plus deposits (391,818)
EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay 377,349
Debt service
Principal 237,441
Interest and fiscal charges 85,717
Current
Economic development 118,778
Total expenditures 819,285
ENDING BALANCE (DEFICIT), DECEMBER 31, 2018 $ (1,211,103)
ENDING BALANCE (DEFICIT), BY SOURCE
None $ (1,211,103)
Subtotal (1,211,103)
Less surplus funds -
ENDING BALANCE (DEFICIT), DECEMBER 31, 2018 $ (1,211,103)

Attachment K
Unit Code: 063/05-32
Downtown TIF

(See independent auditor's report on supplementary information.)



CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS & ADVISORS
I KI H ® Members of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

1415 West Diehl Road, Suite 400
Naperville, IL 60563

630.566.8400

SIKICH.COM

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT

The Honorable President
Members of the Board of Trustees
Village of Huntley, Illinois

We have examined management’s assertion, included in its representation letter dated May 31,
2019 that the Village of Huntley, Illinois (the Village) complied with the provisions of subsection
(g) of Section 11-74.4-3 of the Illinois Tax Increment Redevelopment Allocation Act (lllinois
Public Act 85-1142) during the year ended December 31, 2018. Management is responsible for
the Village’s assertion and for compliance with those requirements. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on management’s assertion about the Village’s compliance based on our
examination.

Our examination was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the examination to obtain reasonable assurance about whether management’s assertion
about compliance with the specified requirements is fairly stated, in all material respects. An
examination involves performing procedures to obtain evidence about whether management’s
assertion is fairly stated, in all material respects. The nature, timing and extent of the procedures
selected depend on our judgment, including an assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of management’s assertion, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the evidence we
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the Village’s compliance with
statutory requirements.

In our opinion, management’s assertion that the Village of Huntley, Illinois complied with the
aforementioned requirements for the year ended December 31, 2018 is fairly stated, in all
material respects.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the President, Board of Trustees,
management of the Village, the Illinois State Comptroller’s Office and the joint review board and
is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

SM ‘44];) Attachment L

Naperville, Illinois Unit Code 063/05-032
May 31, 2019 Downtown TIF

ACCOUNTING TECHNOLOGY ADVISORY

_ -1-



J

POINT OF
BECINNING _\
FOR TIF

SCALE IN FEET

QUARTER OF SECTION 23-43-7

by

R or/ gﬁ NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 28-43-7

‘.k:'

Tz

aes w l ras 4
z ™

oo 3 wes

4

o

= A 2

QUARTER OF SECTION"Z3-43-7 —:/ £
wea

QUARTER OF SECTIDN Mﬁ

—5—
i E ;
1
g 2
w E
S :
5 s 7
£).3 .
- R —
T
SRl
who o i oot
R I T
wan 4 YL (e
o S AR
T A N
s €T T
I H N
Tt =
3
|
=
s
: 8 i
E;l @z il [
= B Ao |y - n
2 |n E 3 = :
.g 5 w. o r’
E - “E" :E“ ves 2 P |;
E 3 [ H— !
At B | .
B = It
; g E 'L]
w E b N
3 i L !
g1 b2
]
1 t
@
N o
| . e
, Y- AN\N
CALC. _JRM PROJECT NO.
CHRISTOPHER B. BURKE ENGINEERING, LTD. TIF EXHIBIT T
C 9575 West Higglins Road. Sulte 600 VILLAGE OF HUNTLEY, ILLINOIS CHKD. R SHEET 1 OF 1
Bl Rosemont, lllinols 60018 PREPARED FDR' Some | 1oiz00 | ORAWING NO.
(847) 823-0500 VILLAGE OF HUNTLEY onies 00232012 TIFRT47A

EBTLLTARTA7_ T _EXWOITNSLRVEYNTFRIATALSUR




EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

THAT PART OF THE EAST HALF OF SECTION 29, THE NORTH HALF OF SECTION 33 AND SECTION 28,
TOWNSHIP 43 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, IN MCHENRY COUNTY
ILLINOIS, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 12 IN A,W. GARLIEB'S SUBDIVISION, ACCORDING TO
THE PLAT THERE OF RECORDED JULY 3, 1957 AS DOCUMENT NO. 325052, BOOK 13 OF PLATS, PAGE 25;
THENCE EAST ALONG THE NORTH LOT LINE OF SAID LOT 12 AND ITS EASTERLY EXTENSION TO A POINT
ON THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF VINE STREET; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID EASTERLY
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF VINE STREET TO [TS INTERSECTION WITH THE NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY
LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 47, AS WIDENED; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHWESTERLY
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, AS WIDENED, TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE NORTHWESTERLY
EXTENSION OF THE NORTHEASTERLY LINE OF LOT 2 IN BAKLEY’S 19TH ADDITION, ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED DECEMBER 23, 2010 AS DOCUMENT NO. 2010R0059528; THENCE
SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHWESTERLY EXTENSION AND NORTHEASTERLY LINE TO THE
NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 2; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 2 TO THE
SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF, SAID SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 2 ALSO BEING THE NORTHEAST
CORNER OF LOT 22 IN BAKLEY’S 5TH ADDITION, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED
FEBRUARY 16, 1970 AS DOCUMENT NO. 520713; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 22
AND ITS SOUTHERLY EXTENSION TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KENNETH AVENUE;
THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF KENNETH AVENUE TO A POINT ON THE
EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 47; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID EASTERLY
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF LOT 1 IN THE RESUBDIVISION OF LOT 24
OF BAKLEY’S 5TH ADDITION, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED ON MAY 26, 1971 AS
DOCUMENT NO. 543478; THENCE EASTERLY, SOUTHERLY AND EASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY LINE
OF LOT 1 TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE CONTINUING EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINES
OF LOT 2 AND 3 IN SAID RESUBDIVISION OF LOT 24 TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 3, SAID
SOUTHEAST CORNER ALSO BEING A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF LOT 4 IN SAID RESUBDIVISION OF LOT
24; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF LOTS 4 THROUGH 8, INCLUSIVE, IN SAID RESUBDIVISION
OF LOT 24, AND ITS SOUTHERLY EXTENSION TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF
ALGONQUIN ROAD; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ALGONQUIN ROAD TO
THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 IN BAKLEY’'S 1ST ADDITION TO THE VILLAGE OF HUNTLEY,
ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED OCTOBER 22, 1956 AS DOCUMENT NO. 314593; THENCE
SOUTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1 AND THE WEST LINES OF LOTS 3 THROUGH 7, INCLUSIVE,
TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE OF LOT 11 IN BLOCK
5 OF HUNTLEY STATION AND HUNTLEY’S ADDITIONS, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED
MAY 20, 1875; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID EASTERLY EXTENSION AND THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 11
AND THE NORTH LINES OF LOTS 12 AND 13 [N SAID BLOCK 5 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT



13; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 13 AND ITS SOUTHERLY EXTENSION TO A POINT
ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF NORTH STREET; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF
NORTH STREET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 95 FEET OF THE EAST
HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 28; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF
THE WEST 95 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NORTH 12 FEET OF LOT 21 IN BLOCK 1 OF
THE ORIGINAL PLAT OF HUNTLEY'S STATION AS RECORDED IN THE RECORDER’S OFFICE OF MCHENRY
COUNTY, ILLINOIS, IN BOOK 7 OF PLATS ON PAGE 43; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF THE
NORTH 12 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 21; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE
OF LOT 21 AND CONTINUING ALONG THE WEST LINE OF LOT 20 TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID
LOT 20; THENCE EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 20 TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE
EAST LINE OF THE WEST 100 FEET OF SAID EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 28;
THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE WEST 100 FEET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE
SOUTH LINE OF LOT 19 IN SAID BLOCK 1; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE OF LOT 19 TO A POINT
OF INTERSECTION WITH THE EAST LINE OF THE WEST 93 FEET OF SAID EAST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST
QUARTER OF SECTION 28; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE WEST 93 FEET TO A POINT OF
INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF LOT 18 IN SAID BLOCK 1; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH
LINE OF LOT 18 TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 1 IN KANAKARIS SUBDIVISION-ACCORDING TO THE
PLAT THEREOF RECORDED AUGUST 20, 1998 AS DOCUMENT NO. 98R00055414; THENCE SOUTH ALONG
THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 1, FIVE COURSES TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1, SAID
SOUTHEAST CORNER ALSO BEING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 11 IN SAID BLOCK 1 OF THE
ORIGINAL PLAT OF HUNTLEY’S STATION; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 11 AND
THE WEST LINES OF LOT 10 THROUGH 5, INCLUSIVE, TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 5;
THENCE EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 5 TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF
WOODSTOCK STREET; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO A POINT OF
INTERSECTION WITH THE WESTERLY EXTENSION OF THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF 15T STREET;
THENCE EAST ALONG SAID WESTERLY EXTENSION AND NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO A POINT OF
INTERSECTION WITH THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CHURCH STREET; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID
WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CHURCH STREET TO A POINT OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT TO A POINT
WHICH IS ON THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID CHURCH STREET, 161.4 FEET NORTH OF THE
NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 4 IN BLOCK 11 OF SAID ORIGINAL PLAT OF HUNTLEY’S STATION; THENCE
EAST TO SAID POINT ON THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CHURCH STREET; THENCE CONTINUING EAST
TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST LINE OF LOT 3 IN BLOCK 1 IN T.S. HUNTLEY
JR’S ADDITION TO HUNTLEY, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED SEPTEMBER 22, 1905 AS
DOCUMENT NO. 2444 IN BOOK 2 OF PLATS, PAGE 68, SAID POINT BEING SOUTH OF THE SOUTHEAST
CORNER OF SAID LOT 3, A DISTANCE OF 63.60 FEET; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY
EXTENSION 35.4 FEET; THENCE EASTERLY PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID LOT3 TO A
POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST LINE OF LOT 5 IN SAID BLOCK
1, SAID POINT BEING 99 FEET SOUTH OF THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 5; THENCE NORTH ALONG
SAID SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST LINE OF LOT 5, A DISTANCE OF 66 FEET; THENCE EASTERLY
PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF LOTS 6, 7 AND 8 IN SAID BLOCK 1 TO A POINT OF
INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 8; THENCE NORTHERLY
ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY EXTENSION AND EAST LINE OF LOT 8 TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-



WAY LINE OF 2ND STREET; THENCE EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO THE EAST LINE OF
THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 28; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE OF THE
SOUTHWEST QUARTER, 180 FEET; THENCE WESTERLY PARALLEL TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID T.S.
HUNTLEY JR’S. ADDITION, 66 FEET; THENCE SOUTH PARALLEL WITH SAID EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST
QUARTER TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF ADRIAN’S ADDITION TO
THE VILLAGE OF HUNTLEY, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED OCTOBER 19, 1905 AS
DOCUMENT NO. 2632; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY EXTENSION TO A POINT ON SAID EAST
LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 28; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE, 85 FEET;
THENCE EAST PARALLEL TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID ADRIAN’S ADDITION TO A POINT ON THE WEST
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF MYRTLE STREET, SAID POINT BEING 186.75 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTH LINE OF
THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 28; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE TO A
POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF MYRTLE STREET; THENCE SOUTH
ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF MYRTLE STREET TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 6 IN
BLOCK 2 IN SAID ADRIAN'S ADDITION; THENCE EAST TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SA!D LOT 6, SAID
SOUTHEAST CORNER ALSO BEING A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF LOT 3 IN SAID BLOCK 2; THENCE
NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINES OF LOT 3 TO THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 3; THENCE EAST
ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF LOTS 3, 4 AND 5 IN SAID BLOCK 2 TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT
5; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 5 AND ITS SOUTHERLY EXTENSION TO A POINT ON
THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF MAIN STREET; THENCE WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY
LINE OF MAIN STREET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A LINE THAT IS 124,21 FEET EAST OF AND
PARALLEL TO THE EAST LINE OF WELTZIEN'S ADDITION TO THE VILLAGE OF HUNTLEY, ACCORDING TO
THE PLAT THERE OF RECORDED JULY 13, 1896 AS DOCUMENT NO. 18045 IN BOOK 1 OF PLATS, PAGE 62;
THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH A LINE THAT IS 200
FEET SOUTH OF AND PARALLEL TO SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF MAIN STREET; THENCE WEST
ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE TO A POINT ON SAID EAST LINE OF WELTZIEN'S ADDITION TO THE VILLAGE
OF HUNTLEY; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 2 IN BLOCK 1
IN SAID WELTZIEN'S ADDITION; THENCE WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 2 TO THE
SOUTHWEST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE WEST CROSSING MYRTLE STREET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER
OF LOT 2 IN BLOCK 2 OF SAID WELTZIEN’S ADDITION; THENCE WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID
LOT 2 TO ITS SOUTHWEST CORNER, SAID SOUTHWEST CORNER ALSO BEING A POINT ON THE EAST LINE
OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 33; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE TO THE
NORTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 6 IN BLOCK 10 OF THE AFORESAID ORIGINAL PLAT OF HUNTLEY’S STATION;
THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE NORTHWESTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 6 TO THE SOUTHEAST

- CORNER OF LOT 5 IN SAID BLOCK 10, THENCE NORTH ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 5 AND

CONTINUING ALONG THE LINE OF LOT 3 IN SAID BLOCK 10, A DISTANCE OF 14 FEET; THENCE
SOUTHWESTERLY TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY LINE OF LOT 4 IN SAID BLOCK 10, SAID POINT 15 20
FEET NORTHERLY OF THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 4, SAID POINT IS ALSO ON THE EASTERLY
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF GROVE STREET; THENCE CONTINUING SOUTHWESTERLY AT RIGHT ANGLES TO A
POINT ON THE WESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID GROVE STREET, SAID POINT BEING OPPOSITE
AND ADJACENT TO THE LAST DESCRIBED POINT; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF GROVE STREET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 1 IN BLOCK 8 IN SAID
ORIGINAL PLAT OF HUNTLEY’S STATION; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF LOT



1 AND LOT 2 TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 2; THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG A LINETO A
POINT WHICH LIES 10 FEET NORTHEASTERLY OF THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 5, SAID POINT
ALSO BEING ON THE NORTHEASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 5; THENCE
SOUTHWESTERLY ON SAID NORTHEASTERLY EXTENSION AND NORTH LINE OF LOT 5, TO THE
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 5, SAID CORNER ALSO BEING A POINT ON THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE OF CHURCH STREET; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE
AND ITS SOUTHERLY EXTENSION TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF MILL
STREET; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO A POINT OF
INTERSECTION WITH THE NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE CHICAGO NORTHWESTERN
RAILWAY COMPANY; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO
THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 IN GROVE STREET SUBDIVISION, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF
RECORDED ON SEPTEMBER 7, 2007 AS DOCUMENT NO, 2007R0062941; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY
ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 1 TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1; THENCE EASTERLY
AT RIGHT ANGLES TO A POINT ON THE EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF GROVE STREET, SAID POINT
BEING OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1; THENCE SOUTHERLY
ALONG SAID EASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO A POINT THAT IS OPPQOSITE AND ADJACENT TO THE
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 6 IN SAID GROVE STREET SUBDIVISION; THENCE WEST TO SAID SOUTHEAST
CORNER OF LOT 6; THENCE WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 6 TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER
OF SAID LOT 6, SAID SOUTHWEST CORNER ALSO BEING A POINT ON THE NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE OF SAID CHICAGO NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY COMPANY; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY AND
SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION
WITH THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF GROVE STREET; THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EAST RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE OF GROVE STREET TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE
OF MARTIN DRIVE; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO A POINT
THAT IS OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT TO A POINT OF THE NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID
MARTIN DRIVE, SAID POINT BEING 165 FEET (10 RODS) SOUTHEASTERLY OF THE INTERSECTION WITH
DEAN STREET; THENCE NORTHERLY TO SAID POINT ON THE NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF
MARTIN DRIVE; THENCE NORTHERLY PARALLEL TO THE EAST LINE OF DEAN STREET, 127.20 FEET TO THE
LINE 4.22 FEET NORTH OF AND PARALLEL WITH THE NORTH FACE AND THE EXTENSIONS THEREOF OF
THE RESIDENTIAL DWELLING LOCATED AT 11330 DEAN STREET; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTH
LINE 153.68 FEET TO THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF DEAN STREET; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG THE
LAST DESCRIBED COURSE WESTERLY TO A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID DEAN
STREET; THENCE NORTHERLY AND NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND iTS
NORTHWESTERLY EXTENSION TO A POINT ON THE NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE CF SAID MILL
STREET; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO THE MOST
SOUTHERLY CORNER OF LOT 9 IN BLOCK 11 IN SAID ORIGINAL PLAT OF HUNTLEY’S STATION; THENCE
NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF LOT 9 IN SAID BLOCK 11, A DISTANCE OF 129
FEET; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, A DISTANCE OF 203.63 FEET TO A POINT ON THE NORTHWESTERLY
LINE OF LOT 5 IN SAID BLOCK 11, SAID POINT BEING 31 FEET SOUTHWESTERLY OF, MEASURED ALONG
SAID NORTHWESTERLY LINE, THE NORTHEAST CORNER THEREOF; THENCE CONTINUING ALONG THE
LAST DESCRIBED COURSE APPROXIMATELY 72.5 FEET FURTHER TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION WITH THE
SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE ELGIN AND BELVIDERE ELECTRIC RAILWAY COMPANY AND



THE SOUTHEASTERLY LINE OF THE PARCEL DESCRIBED IN DOCUMENT NQO. 2006R0042082 RECORDED
ON JUNE 9, 2006; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHEASTERLY LINE, 102.47 FEETTO A
POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID
SECTION 33, SAID POINT BEING 548.91 FEET NORTH OF THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID QUARTER
QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH ALONG SAID EAST LINE TO A POINT WHICH (S 145.9 FEET NORTH OF SAID
SOUTHEAST CORNER; THENCE WEST PARALLEL WITH THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID QUARTER QUARTER, TO
A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST 150 FEET OF SAID QUARTER QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH ALONG
SAID WEST LINE EXTENDED SOUTHERLY TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID MILL
STREET; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO A POINT OF INTERSECTION
WITH THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF LINCOLN STREET; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST RIGHT-
OF-WAY LINE TO THE SOUTH LINE OF GRIMLEY’S ADDITION, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF
RECORDED SEPTEMBER 24, 1906 AS DOCUMENT NO. 5510; THENCE EAST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE TO
THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 2 IN BLOCK 3 OF SAID GRIMLEY’S ADDITION; THENCE NORTH ALONG
THE EAST LINE OF SAID LOT 2 AND AN EASTERLY LINE OF SAID GRIMLEY’S ADDITION TO THE NORTHEAST
CORNER OF LOT 7 IN BLOCK 1 OF SAID GRIMLEY’S ADDITION; THENCE EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF
SAID BLOCK 1 TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF LOT 1 IN SAID BLOCK 1; THENCE NORTH ALONG THE EAST
LINE OF SAID LOT 1 AND ITS NORTHERLY EXTENSION TO A POINT ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE
OF SAID MAIN STREET; THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO THE SOUTHEAST
CORNER OF LOT 1 IN THE PLAT OF SURVEY OF PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE SOUTHWEST
QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 28, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT TH EREOF RECORDED ON DECEMBER 2,1954
AS DOCUMENT NO. 286432 IN BOOK 12 OF PLATS, PAGE 10; THENCE NORTH ALONG TWO COURSES TO
THE MOST NORTHERLY CORNER OF SAID LOT 1, SAID CORNER ALSO BEING A POINT ON THE WESTERLY
LINE OF LOT 2 IN SAID PLAT OF SURVEY; THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID WESTERLY LINE OF LOT 2 TO
THE MOST NORTHERLY CORNER THEREOF, SAID NORTHERLY CORNER OF LOT 2 ALSO BEING A POINT ON
THE SOUTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF THE CHICAGO AND NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY
COMPANY; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO THE EAST
LINE OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 29; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID EAST LINETO A
POINT ON THE NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF SAID CHICAGO NORTHWESTERN RAILWAY
COMPANY; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID NORTHEASTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO A POINT
OF INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF LOT 1 IN WOLF BUSINESS
CENTER, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED ON DECEMBER 1, 1997 AS DOCUMENT NO.
97R058885; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY EXTENSION TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID
LOT 1; THENCE EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 1 TO ITS SOUTHEAST CORNER, SAID CORNER
ALSO BEING A POINT ON THE WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF WOLF DRIVE; THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG
SAID WEST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE AND ITS NORTHERLY EXTENSION TO A POINT ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE OF OAKCREST DRIVE; THENCE EAST ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO A POINT OF
INTERSECTION WITH THE SOUTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ALGONQUIN ROAD; THENCE
NORTHERLY AND NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHWESTERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE TO A POINT
OPPOSITE AND ADJACENT TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1 IN GARLIEB AND HARDY UNIT TWO
SUBDIVISION OF THE WEST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 28, ACCORDING TO
THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED OCTOBER 11, 1993 AS DOCUMENT NOQ. 93R061021; THENCE
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE TO SAID SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 1; THENCE NORTH ALONG THE



WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 1 AND EAST ALONG THE NORTH LINE OF SAID LOT 1 TO THE NORTHEAST
CORNER OF SAID LOT 1, SAID NORTHEAST CORNER ALSO BEING A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF
AFORESAID LOT 12 IN A.W. GARLIER’S SUBDIVISION; THENCE NORTH ALONG SAID WEST LINE OF LOT 12
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, ALL IN MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM:

LOT 1IN GARLIES & HARDY SUBDIVISION, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEREOF RECORDED ON JULY 18,
1988 AS DOCUMENT NO, 88R21735 (NOT INCLUDING THAT PORTION OF LOT 1 TAKEN FOR HIGHWAY
PURPOSES BY THE MCHENRY COUNTY DIVISION OF TRANSPORTATION, ACCORDING TO THE DOCUMENT
DATED AUGUST 27, 2007 AS RECORD NO. 2007R0058184), ALL IN MCHENRY COUNTY, ILLINOIS.



	Binder6.pdf
	TIF Map

	Binder5.pdf
	2.20190620160716029.pdf
	20190620160716029.pdf
	Binder2.pdf
	VOH Mayor Letter Attachment B
	VOH TIF Letter Attorney Cowlin Attachment C
	Statement of Activities_2018 Attachment D
	TIF JRB Minutes 06.26.18 Attachment H
	18 TIF Audit - VOHuntley Attachment K & L


	Binder4.pdf
	TIF Legal Description and Map





